
Request for Proposal #21-07 
Contact Center Services 

Questions & Answers 
 

1. Non-Resident Bidder information, General Conditions and Instructions to Vendors, 
page 2, paragraph 8(a), Please let us know if our state of California awards contracts to 
Alabama contractors under similar circumstances?  Yes 

2. Do we email Vanessa.Looney@calhoun.edu to register as a Prospective Vendor in 
order to receive RFP Addenda outlined under Request for Proposal Introduction and 
Vendor Instructions, page 12, paragraph 15, RFP Addenda? Yes 

3. In reference to Calhoun Contact Center Service Requirements, page 19, paragraph 3, 
Management Staff must be willing to attend meetings at Calhoun's various locations. 
Will we be able to teleconference into the meetings that we are unable to attend on-
site?  Teleconference meetings and in-person meetings will be agreed upon in advance. 
We do understand that our management staff must attend one on-site meeting annually. 

4. To what extent will we be training the Calhoun Staff? -  Response Format, page 16, 
Section G.  The required amount of time needed to provide Calhoun staff with the 
familiarity of your program and how your operations work.  

5. What are the Average Handle Times (AHT) of all calls? - Not listed on Service Level 
Agreements on page 26  Information Unavailable 

6. What is the average handle time for phone calls? For 2020, the ASA was 02:55  
7. Do they differ by work type?  No, please refer to RFP for guidance. 
8. What is the forecasted volume daily and monthly? For 2020, the average call volume 

was 4,399 per month 
9. Do you have call arrival patterns?   

1. For example, do more calls arrive during the evening or morning? Information 
Unavailable   

2. Is there a difference in call volume between weekends and weekdays? The largest 
majority of calls are weekdays 

3. What volume is expected overnight?  Minimum calls occur overnight 
1. Are there additional duties that will be required of those agents? Refer to 

the RFP for guidance 
10. How much time is spent on chat versus on phone? Currently, the chat feature is not active 
11. What are the audit requirements for the project? 

1. Will the frequency of audits be monthly, quarterly or annually?  Not applicable 
12. Will Calhoun CC consider alternatives to 24/7 support? No 
13. Why is the school issuing an RFP at this time? The previous contract expires April 1, 

2021.  
14. Why is there only less than 30 days from the response date to the start date?  COVID 

complications fast track the timeline. 

15. Does the school currently use a third-party provider for these services? Yes If so, 
which vendor? EdFinancial/EdAmerica 

 

mailto:Vanessa.Looney@calhoun.edu


16. If utilizing a third-party vendor, what is the price of the current vendor support, how is 
it charged?  For 2020, $287,034.19.  It is charged by monthly invoice and paid by 
purchase order. 

17. In the last 12 months, what did the school pay for call center support and 
default prevention support respectively? For the time period of 10/2019-
09/2020, total cost paid for call center support was $247,034.19 and for 
default prevention support was $16,454.25. 

18. If utilizing a third-party vendor, are you happy with the performance of the 
current vendor. Yes 

19. Are there any services you require that are not being provided by the current vendor? 
None 

20. Because they are different types of services, will Calhoun allow for the inbound 
support to be separated from the default prevention services? No 

21. Can the school provide detailed call volume by month and day from the last year? Yes, 
by month. For 2020, a total of 46,758 calls were answered: 5,688 in January; 2,360 
February; 1,908 March; 3,172 April; 5,428 May; 4,089 June; 4,402 July; 8,812 August; 
3,435 September; 2,432 October; 2,227 November; and 2,802 December. 

22. Can you provide the number of calls by hour between 6:00 pm and 8:00 am for the 
last year?  Not Available 

23. What type of training is currently provided to Calhoun staff? Zoom and Phone Meeting 
with vendor for best practices and updates. How often? Bi-Weekly and as needed 

24. What are the service levels of the current vendor by month for the last 12 months?  Refer 
to page 26 of the RFP for minimum service level expectations.  

25. How do you calculate customer satisfaction today? Based on number and nature of call 
escalations, number of referrals, ASA (Average Speed of Answer), and abandon rate. 

26. What is the current customer satisfaction rate? We are satisfied with your current vendor. 
We are rebidding because of the contract expiration. 

27. What ticketing system do you use today? Sharepoint and emails 
28. How is background check verification documentation provided to Calhoun today 

from the current vendor? Through a secure sFTP site 
29. How many “web-chats” are supported today by the current vendor? None 

30. How many times in the life of the current contract did Calhoun have to make a 
payment adjustment for SLA’s not being met? None 

31. Pg 8, Contract Requirements, Vendor Disclosure Forms: Other than the Vendor 
Disclosure form, are there any additional forms required that are not listed in the RFP?  
E-Verify (page 2 & 3 of the RFP) and the Collusion/Fraud Statement Bid #21-07 (page 
29) are required. 
 

 



32. Pg 23, Contact Center Representatives (CCRs), #2: What documentation would be 
required as proof of the background screening? A listing or invoice from the Third Party 
Company completing Background Screening.  This listing or invoice should include the 
employee name, date of testing and test results. 

33. Pg 23, Contact Center Representatives (CCRs), #8: Does the college currently have a 
product that monitors RSS feeds and Twitter? No. Calhoun’s Public Relations 
Department monitors Twitter. We subscribe to a service that monitors TV broadcasts (TV 
Eyes), and we have google alerts set up to let us know when stories about Calhoun are 
posted/aired. 
If so, what product? Not Applicable  

Is it licensed to the school or the current vendor? Not Applicable  
If school, would they use the same product with the new vendor? Not Applicable 

34. Pg 24, Default Prevention Services – Delinquency Management: As most the 
questions/requirements are specific to contact center services, where would the college 
like the vendor to describe their default prevention services? Should the vendor put this in 
an appendix? Yes 

35. Pg 25, Service Level Agreements (SLAs): If the vendor has a proven track record of 
exceptional service with multi-campus community college systems, will the college 
consider a slightly altered SLA? No 

36. Pg 26, Additional Information, #11: For the cost matrix, the college asks for annual flat 
rate pricing and per incident pricing. We can provide flat rate per call pricing with an 
annual cost estimate.  Would this be acceptable for the response? Refer to page 27 of the 
RFP for guidance.  We prefer annual flat rate pricing and incident pricing. 

37. Is there an incumbent vendor currently providing the services requested in the RFP? Yes 
If so, who is the vendor? EdFinancial/EdAmerica 

38. What is the approximate annual budget for the services requested in the RFP? For 2020, 
the cost was $287,034.19 

39. Does the Calhoun Community College Contact Management Team have training guides / 
materials?  Material and information is available. 

40. The RFP mentions a knowledge base self-help portal on page 22. Please confirm that 
Calhoun Community College has an existing knowledge base or source of documentation 
for Contact Center Reps. A knowledge base is available. 

41. What ticketing system, CRM, and / or other software does Calhoun Community College 
expect the vendor will utilize as part of this engagement?  Our expectation of the vendor 
software is a system that provide accessibility, ease of use, viewable to both agents and 
school, tracks ticket history, etc. 

42. What is the annual volume across all channels of support? For 2020, a total of 46,758 
calls were answered. Can Calhoun Community College provide this data broken out by 
channel? Information Unavailable 

43. Does Calhoun have historical volume records they are able to share with prospective 
vendors? For 2020, 5,688 in January; 2,360 February; 1,908 March; 3,172 April; 5,428 
May; 4,089 June; 4,402 July; 8,812 August; 3,435 September; 2,432 October; 2,227 
November; and 2,802 December. 



44. Does Calhoun Community College have historical interval-level data they are able to 
share with prospective vendors? Information Unavailable 

45. What is present commission or fee percentage?  NA 
46. What are historic placement volumes by type of debt? Emailed question to 

Jason/Chealsie 
47. What are historic recovery rates by type of debt? Emailed question to Jason/Chealsie 
48. When is the anticipated go-live date for this procurement? April 1, 2021 

49. On average, how many calls are received daily, monthly, and annually? Average of 
4,399 per month 

50. What is the average handle time of all calls received? 2 minutes 30 seconds 
51. The Scope of Services section states the agents' objectives include, but are not limited 

to, "answering incoming calls, web chats, emails, constituent initiated ticket system 
requests, and provide robust and comprehensive reports related to all calls at 
appropriate intervals." Can you please elaborate on initiated ticket system requests 
and comprehensive reports? Initiated ticket system requests are those calls that 
require follow-up from Calhoun personnel.  Comprehensive reports are the monthly 
score cards with stats (number of calls answered, abandon rates, referrals, referral 
rates, reason for calls, calls by dept., etc) 

52. How many emails do agents respond to daily, monthly, and annually? None 
53. How many web chats are initiated daily, monthly, and annually? None 

54. How many calls are received by agents that involve a customer whose primary 
language is Spanish? UnKnown 

55. Does Calhoun Community College require all calls to be recorded? If so, how long 
must they be stored? Refer to the page 23 of the RFP for guidance. Retention of the 
records must be within the regulations of the Records Disposition Authority for the 
Office of the Alabama. 

56. Due to the impact of COVID-19, will Calhoun Community College allow agents to 
work remotely on this project? All services must adhere to Calhoun's security 
requirements. 

57. Will Calhoun Community College allow work to be performed in Texas on this 
project? Yes  

58. Does Calhoun Community College have a breakdown of calls by subject matter over 
the past year? Admissions Categories are Graduation, Verification, Degree Audits, 
Enrollment Verification, Missing Requirements, Tuition & Fees, Special 
Circumstances, Registration, Application, Transcripts and Holds. Registrar Category 
is Holds. Financial Aid Categories are Consortium Agreements, R2T4, Refunds, 
Transcripts , Tuition & Fees, Application, Fee Payment/Due Date, Plus/Private 
Loans, Tuition Discounts & Waivers, Direct Loans, Disbursement, Missing 
Requirements, Loan Adjustments, Degree Audits, Institutional Aid, Special 
Circumstances, Verification, SAP, FAFSA, Holds and Award Package. 



59. Page 19 of the RFP states: "The vendor's management staff must be willing and able 
to attend meetings at CALHOUN's various locations for initial planning, quarterly 
contact reviews and whenever deemed necessary by the CALHOUN contract 
management team. At least one time annually a site visit by the offsite contact center 
management team is required." Can these meetings be performed virtually of the 
vendor is not located in Alabama? Vendor must be able to meet all requirements 
within the RFP, unless mandated by federal or state restrictions.  The college may 
choose to make the initial site visit to remote. 

60. Page 25 of the RFP states: "CALHOUN requires that the successful vendor be 
equipped to manage outbound calls, email contacts, SMS text messaging contact, 
RSS feeds, and Tweeter contact." Can you please elaborate on the requirements for 
RSS feeds and Tweeter contact? Currently, Calhoun’s Public Relations Department 
monitors Twitter and uses free products to post to Twitter. We currently subscribe to 
a service that monitors TV broadcasts (TV Eyes), and we have google alerts set up to 
let us know when stories about Calhoun are posted/aired.  Real Simple Syndication 
(RSS) may be used for connecting various sources, for back end use for podcasts, or 
for news feed. 

61. On average, how many SMS text messages occur daily, monthly, and annually? None 

62. In relation to Default Prevention Services, what is the current backlog volume? None 
63. What is the average balance of delinquent accounts? We would probably only 

provide an average of what WF has at this moment. $397.03 
64. If delinquent accounts include student loans, are these federally funded? Calhoun 

does not bill for student loan repayments, only tuition due the college or 
overpayments. 

65. What is the age of the delinquent accounts? 90 days up to 6 year statute of limitations 
before can request approval for write off 

66. What is existing inventory on delinquent accounts to Calhoun Community College? 
Williams & Fudge #678 

67. What collection activity is performed prior to submitting account to collection agency 
such as letters, phone calls, or voicemail? Emails repeatedly throughout the semester, 
bill after final purge, final bill with 30 days or will be turned over to collections. 

68. What percentage of account holders pay delinquent accounts via check/mail? We 
wouldn't possibly know.  We only track that they pay before sending to Collections 
not the way they pay.  And, we don't know how they pay WF. 

69. What percentage of account holders pay delinquent accounts via bank draft? We 
wouldn't possibly know.  We only track that they pay before sending to Collections 
not the way they pay.  And, we don't know how they pay WF. 

70. What percentage of account holders pay delinquent accounts via debit or credit 
options? We wouldn't possibly know.  We only track that they pay before sending to 
Collections not the way they pay.  And, we don't know how they pay WF. 

 


